
THREE HUNDRED 
AND THIRTY-FOURTH .MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Wednesday, Io August I949, at ,8.30 p.m. 

President: Mr. James THORN .. 

83. Continuation of the discussion on . 
the report of the fourth session of 
the Economic and Employment 
Commission ; and the :problem of 
unemployment and full employment 
(E/1332, E/1332/ Add.l-3, E/1356, 
E/1356/Add.1, E/1357, E/1378, 
Ef1380/Rev.1, EjCN.1f63, EjCN.lf 
63/ Add.1-7, E/1497 and E/1506) 

The . PRESIDENT laid before the meeting the 
Polish proposal for the adoption of the draft 
resolut~on presented by the World Federation of 
Trade Uriions (E/1332/Add.2). Since the con
sultant from the World Federation of Trade 
Unions had been promised a· second hearing, he 
now called on him to speak 

Mr. DI VITTORIO, President of the World Fe
deration of Trade Unions, emphasized that the 
Economic and Social Council had been unanimous 
in recognizing the importance· of the problem 
raised by his Federation. That recognition amply 
justified the steps the Federation had taken. He 
expressed his gratitude to th~ Polish delegation 
for sponsoring the Federation;s draft resolution, 
and to the Soviet Union and Byelorussian dele
gations for supporting it. 

He denied that he was indulging in systematic 
pessimism or calling down a catastrophe upon 
the world. The conclusions he had stated were 
based on official statistics published by the Secre
tary-General or by the Economic Commission 
for Europe. If a certain trend emerged from facts 
stated, it was the facts themselves which should 
be blamed, not the Federation. His reason ,for 
criticizing trusts and monopolies lay in the fact 
that all workers, whatever their political allegiance, 
were convinced that responsibility for unemploy
ment and for all the other scourg~ which afflicted 
the working masses , lay with the trusts. . The 
World Federation of Trade Unions did not claim 
to repreSent the entire body of workers, but with 
its 71,545,ooo members it was by far the biggest 
international workers' organization.. It was on 
behalf of those millions of workers that he had 
come forward to advocate solutions for reducing 
unemployment to a minimum and alleviating the 
lot of the unemployed. 

With regard to the role of the trusts, he cited 
a statement by Mr. Philip Murray, President of 
the Congress of Industrial Organizations, .on 12 
July 1949. ·which confirmed the World Federation 
of Trade Unions' interpretation of the situation. 
Mr. Murray had stated that, in the United States 
of America during the la5t nine months, pr~duction 

TROIS CENT '(RENTE-QUATRIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le mercredi Io aoUt I949, a 20 h. 30 

President : M. James THoRN. 

83. Suite de Ia discussion du rapport 
de Ia Commission des questions 
economiques et de 1' emploi sur sa 
quatrieme session ; et sur le prohle
me du chomage et du plein emploi 
(E/13S2, E/1332/ Add.l-3, E/1356, 
E/1356/ A«Jd.l, . E/1357, E/1378, 
Ef1380/Rev.1, E/CN.1/63, E/CN.1/ 
63/ Ad(J.1-7, E/1497 et E/1506) 

.Le Pmi:smEINT ·saisit le Conseil de la propositiop 
de la Pologn~ tendant a !'adoption du projet de 
resolution presente par la Federation syndicale 
mondiale (E/b32/Add.2). Comme le Conseil a 
promis au co#sultant de la Federation syndicale 
mondiale de !:'entendre une seconde fois, il invite 
celui-ci a pre*dre la parole. 

M. m VrrloRro, president de. la Federation 
syndicale mo~diale, souligne que le Conseil a ete 
unanime a retonnaitre !'importance du probleme 
souleve par Ii Federation syndicale mondiale, ce 
qui justifie aniplement les mesures prises par cette 
Federation. Ill exprime sa gratitude a la delegation 
de la Pologne d'avoir repris a son compte le projet 
de resolution ide la Federation, ainsi qu'aux dele
gations de l''Qnion sovietique et de la Bielorussie, 
qui 1' ont sou~enu. 

M. di Vittoiio se defend de s'abandonner a un 
pessimisme systematique ou d'appeler de ses 
vceux une catastrophe. Les conclusions qu'il a 
formulees son~ fondees sur des donnees officielles 
emanant du Secretaire general ou de la Commission 
economique ]>our !'Europe. Si .une tendance se 
degage des faits exposes, ce n'est pas a la Federa
tion qu'il fau~ s'en prendie, mais aux faits eux
memes. Si le representant de la Federation syndi
cale mondiale! critique les trusts et les monopoles, 
c'est pai:ce q~e tous les travailleurs, qp,elle que 
soit leur appirrfenance politique, sont persuades 
que ce sont ~es trusts qui sont responsables du 
ch6mage et d1 tons les autres fleaux qui s'abattent 
sur les masses1laborieuses. La Federation syndicale 
mondiale ne P,retend pas representer la totalite des 
travailleurs, ~ais, avec ses 71.545.ooo adherents, 
elle est <;le loin la plus grande organisation ouvriere 
internationale. C'est au nom de ces millions de 
travailleurs que M. di Vittorio preconise des · 
solutions tendant a reduire le chomage au minimum 
et a ameliorer la situation des cMmeurs. 

En ce qui concerne le role des trusts, M. di 
Vittorio cite une declaration de M. Philip Murray, 
president du « Congress of Industrial Organiza
tions », en date du 12 juillet 1949, · qui confirme 
le diagnostic de la Federation syndicale mondiale. 
M. Murray declare qu'aux Etats-Unis, au cours 
des neuf derniers mois, la production a diminue 

759 



had fallen by rs %, the number. of unemployed 
had doubled, and millions of workers had been 
reduced to a state of partial unemployment. The 
cost of living remained at a very high level, while 
the purchasing power of the working classes had 
declined. That was the result, Mr. Murray said, 
of the egoisticql and short-sighted policy of big 
business, trusts and monopolies, which, according 
to Mr. Murray, had refused to heed the recommen
dations of the Congress of Industrial Organizations. 

Furthermore, the United Nations Statistical 
Bulletin for July 1949 confirmed the general rise 
in capitalist profits. He thought no further 
proof was needed of the fact that the workers' 
share of the national income was constantly 
falling. 

The effects of the Marshall Plan on the unemploy
ment problem could be gauged from official 
statements. Recently, Mr. Hoffman, the General 
Administrator of the European Reconstruction 
Programme, had stated that in rg52, if all went 
well, the standard of living of the countries receiv
ing aid would attain go % of the 1938 level. Yet 
the rg38 level had itself been rather low. In 
Italy the Fascist regime, which had been entirely 
subservient to the trusts and monopolies, had 
been carrying out a policy of despoiling the workers. 
In addition, a considerable proportion of the 
national income had been devoted to amassing 
armaments for an aggressive war. 

He then quoted an article from the Geneva 
newspaper La Suisse, of I5 July 1949, in which 
the fear had been expressed that under the Plan 
certain limitations might be placed on Switzerland's 
trade with the Eastern-European countries. In 
Italy, the pasta industry was working below 
capacity, because people were compelled to eat 
macaroni imported from the United States of 
America. 

The Marshall Plan had therefore every semblance 
of being a means of exporting depression and 
unemployment, particularly as the discriminatory 
policy shown towards the Eastern-European coun
tries tended to hamper the development of interna
tional trade and hence to cause general impoverish
ment, which in turn gave rise to unemployment. 

In certain countries armaments were regarded 
as a solution of the unemployment problem. 
In that connexion he quoted from the World 
Economic Survey for I938/39 (page 6o), published 
by the League of Nations, a passage to the effect 
that rearmament had the same effects as a policy 
of reducing unemployment through a programme 
of public works. The Survey further observed 
that it was less costly to maintain soldiers than 
to pay substantial unemployment benefits. 

It was not true, as had been alleged, that the 
World Federation of Trade Unions wanted to 
prevent emigration. What it did want was to 
see emigration so regulated as to afford adequate 
protection to emigrants, especially in respect of 
their enjoyment of equal economic and social 
rights with indigenous workers. It wanted to 
prevent their being exploited as a means of bringing 
pressure to bear on the indigenous workers to 
accept wage cuts. It considered that emigration 
was possible only after preliminary agreements 
had been concluded between the trade union 
organizations of the emigrant and immigrant 

de I5 %, que le nombre des chOmeurs a double, 
et que des millions de travailleurs ont ete reduits 
a un chOmage partie!. Le cout de la vie se maintient 
a un niveau tres eleve, tandis que le pouvoir 
d'achat des classes laborieuses a baisse. C'est la, 
dit M. Murray, le resultat de la politique egoiste 
et a courte vue des milieux d'affaires et des 
trusts et monopoles, qui ont refuse de tenir compte 
des recommandations du << Congress of Industrial 
Organizations J), 

Par ailleurs, le Bulletin de Statistique de !'Orga
nisation des Nations Unies pour le mois de juillet 
rg49 confirme !'augmentation generale des profits 
capitalistes. L'orateur tient pour demontre que 
la part des ouvriers dans le revenu national diminue 
constamment. 

Quant aux incidences du Plan Marshall sur le 
probleme du chomage, il su:ffit d'examiner les 
declarations o:fficielles. Recemment, M. Hoffman, 
administrateur general du programme de recons
truction europeen, a declare que, si tout allait 
bien, le niveau de vie des pays secourus afteindrait, 
en rg52, go % du niveau existant en 1938. Or, 
le niveau de rg38 etait lui-meme assez bas. En 
Italie, le fasciste, tout a la devotion des 
trusts et des monopoles, pratiquait une politique 
de spoliation des travailleurs. En outre, une part 
tres importante du revenu national etait consacree 
a !'accumulation des armements, en vue d'une 
guerre d'agression. 

Le representant de la Federation syndicale 
mondiale cite ensuite un article du journal gene
vois La Suisse, du rs juillet 1949, qui exprime 
la crainte de voir, en vertu de ce plan, imposer 
certaines limitations au commerce de la Suisse 
avec les pays de !'Europe orientale. En Italie, 
l'industrie des pates alimentaires travaille a 
regime reduit parce que la population est obligee 
de se nourrir de macaroni importe des Etats
Unis d' Amerique. 

Le Plan Marshall apparait done bien comme un 
moyen d' exporter la crise et le chomage. Cela est 
d'autant plus evident que la politique discrimina
toire a l'egard des pays de !'Europe orientale tend 
a entraver le developpement du commerce inter
national et, partant, a causer un appauvrissement 
general qui, a son tour, engendre le ch6mage. 

Dans certains pays, les armements sont consi
den~s comme une solution au probleme du chomage. 
:M. di Vittorio cite a cet effet 1' Etude sur la situation 
economique mondiale en I938/39 publiee par Ia 
Societe des Nations. A la page 66 de cet ouvrage, 
il est dit que le rearmement a les memes effets 
qu'une politique de reduction du chomage au 
moyen des travaux publics. L'Etude indique · de 
plus qu'il est moins couteux d'entretenir des soldats 
que de payer de substantielles allocations de 
chomage. 

II n'est pas vrai, comme on l'a pretendu, que 
la Federation syndicale mondiale veut emplkher 
!'emigration. Ce qu'elle veut en realite, c'est voir 
!'emigration reglementee de fa<;on a assurer aux 
emigrants une protection convenable, notamment 
en leur assurant des droits economiques et sociaux 
eg~ux a ceux des travailleurs du pays. La Fede
ration veut empecher que leur exploitation soit 
utilisee comme moyen de pression sur les travail
leurs locaux, pour que ceux-ci acceptent des 
reductions de salaires. Elle considere que !'emi
gration n'est possible qu'apres conclusion d'accords 
preparatoires entre les organisations syndicales 

760 



countries, and when it had been confirmed that 
there was a genuine demand for immigrant labour. 

His organization had been accused of proclaiming 
an ideology which presented the world as divided 
between a wholly good socialist part and a wholly 
evil capitalistic part. In actual fact, both the 
report presented by the World Federation of Trade 
Unions and his own previous statement had 
merely brought out the fact that, in Socialist 
countries like the Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics, unemployment had been eliminated for 
many years past, as he had been able to observe 
for himself when travelling in that country. That 
was an incontestable historic fact, the significance 

· of which was apparent to all workers whatever 
their political views. Unemployment, moreover, 
could not reappear in the Soviet Union, because 
there was no disharmony between the development 
of production and the development of consump
tion. Production was not operated for the en
richment of individuals or of a restricted group, 
but to increase the economic and intellectual 
welfare of the great masses of the people. He 
was convinced that the other countries which 
had set out on the same path would eventually 
achieve the same results, even if they had not 
yet done so. 

His organization had also been charged with 
inconsistency, in that while maintaining that 
capitalism inevitably engendered unemployment, 
it had put forward proposals, to whose moderation 
various speakers had testified, designed to arrest 
unemployment in capitalist countries. That in
consistency was a matter of formal logic only. 
It was not only those who thought as he did 
who were· convinced that the capitalist system 
must create unemployment, for all delegations 
had agreed that it entailed the recurrence of 
cyclical crises. However, that was no reason 
for not making an effort to check or reduce un
employment under the capitalist system, or, at 
least, to alleviate the lot of the unemployed, by 
appealing to men of good will and humane senti
ments in capitalist countries, and by looking to 
the workers' organizations and democratic Govern
ments to put a brake on capitalist exploitation. 
Jean J aures, who had declared that capitalism 
brought war in its train, in the same way that 
the cloud brought the thunderstorm, had fought 
against war, and as a result had met his death 
by assassination. Just as the peoples of the 
world could oppose and prevent war by creating 
an all-embracing fraternity, so could the working 
masses, by vigorous joint action, put an end to 
unemployment. 

Turning to the draft resolution, he said that 
the very arguments of its critics proved that it 
was in no way demagogic, but, on the contrary, 
comprised eminently practical proposals. The 
French representative, for instance, had claimed 
that those proposals already found expression in 
the Truman programme and corresponded to 
measures already applied in France, the United 
States of America and elsewhere. What was 
essential, however, was not the proclamation of 
programmes, but their implementation. There 
was a lack of correspondence between what the 

des pays d'emigration et des pays d'immigration, 
et lorsqu'il est confirme qu'il existe veritablement 
une demande de main-d'ceuvre immigrante. 

On a egalement accuse son organisation de 
proner une ideologie qui decrit le monde comme 
divise en une partie socialiste entierement bonne 
et une partie capitaliste entierement mauvaise. 
En realite, le rapport presente par la Federation 
syndicale mondiale et les declarations qu'il a 
faites lui-meme precedemment font simplement 
ressortir le fait que, dans des pays comme l'Union 
des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, le chomage 
a disparu depuis de nombreuses annees, ainsi 
que l'orateur a eu !'occasion de s'en rendre compte 
par lui-meme en voyageant dans ce~pays. C'est 
la un fait historique incontestable, dont la portee 
apparait a tous les travailleurs, queUes que soient 
leurs opinions politiques. En outre, le chomage 
ne peut reapparaitre en Union sovietique parce 
qu'il n'existe aucun desaccord entre le developpe
ment de la production et le developpement de la 
consommation. On ne produit pas pour enrichir 
des individus ou un groupe restreint, mais pour 
accroitre le bien-etre economique et intellectuel 
des grandes masses populaires. M. di Vittorio est 
convaincu que les autres pays qui se sont engages 
dans la meme voie parviendront a l'avenir au 
meme resultat, a supposer qu'ils n'y soient pas 
encore arrives. 

On a aussi accuse son organisation d'incohe
rence, parce que, partie de l'idee que le capitalisme 
engendre inevitablement le chomage, elle a mis 
en avant des· propositions, dont la moderation a 
ete attestee par divers. orateurs, tendant a mettre 
fin au chomage dans les pays capitalistes. Cette 
contradiction n' existe que sur le plan de la logique 
formelle. Ceux qui partagent les opinions de 
M. di Vittorio ne sont pas les seuls a etre convaincus 
que le systeme capitaliste engendre necessairement 
le chomage, car toutes les delegations ont reconnu 
que ce systeme entraine le retour de crises 'cycli
ques. Quoi qu'il en soit, ce n'est pas une raison 
pour ne pas faire un effort pour enrayer ou reduire 
le chomage en regime capitaliste, ou tout au moins 
pour ameliorer la condition des chomeurs en 
faisant appel dans les pays capitalistes aux hommes 
de bonne volonte animes de sentiments d'humanite, 
et en comptant sur les organisations de travailleurs 
et les Gouvernements democratiques pour qu'ils 
mettent un frein a !'exploitation capitaliste. Jean 
J aures, qui declarait que le capitalisme portait 
en lui la guerre comme le nuage porte en lui 
la tempete, a lutte contre la guerre. Le resultat, 
c'est qu'il a peri assassine. Tout comme les peuples 
du monde peuvent s'opposer a la guerre et l'em
pecher en creant une fraternite universelle, les 
masses ouvrieres, par une vigoureuse action 
collective, peuvent mettre fin au chomage. 

Passant au projet de resolution, il declare que 
les arguments memes de ses critiques prouvent 
que ce projet n'est en aucune fa<;:on demagogique, 
mais contient au contraire des propositions emi
nemment pratiques. Le representant de la France, 
par exemple, a soutenu que ces propositions 
avaient deja trouve leur expression dans le pro
gramme Truman et correspondaient aux mesures 
deja appliquees en France, aux Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique et ailleurs. Toutefois, ce qui est essentiel, 
ce n'est pas d'annoncer bruyamment des program
mes, mais de les mettre en ceuvre. Il n'y a pas 

761' 



draft resolution demanded and what had actually 
been accomplished in various countries. 

It had been said, for instance, that in France 
the proposals of the draft resolution had already 
been carried into effect, that a system of unem
ployment insurance supplemented by family allow
ances already ensured adequate relief. But such 
relief was limited by a number of conditions. 
Unemployed workers had to prove that they 
were under no obligations towards their last 
employers ; . they had to have worked for at least 
six months, and to have been domiciled in the 
same commune for at least three months, before 
they could qualify for relief. If they refused 
work offered by the Labour Exchanges, either in the 
.locality in which they lived or elsewhere, their 
unemployment relief was usually stopped. Muni
cipalities were authorized to employ them for 
two to three days a week ; if they refused they 
could be struck off the register. Again, relief did 
not cover those whose unemployment resulted 
from strikes, a fact which put a new weapon 
into the hands of employers. The World Federa
tion of Trade Unions was asking for a very 
different system, which would provide relief 
sufficient to guarantee a decent standard of living 
to all unemployed workers and their families for 
the whole period of their unemployment from 
the first day to the last. 

Unemployment insurance in the United States 
of America was of the same character as that in 
France; it by no means coveted all workers. 
Over one million agricultural workers, 2,Joo,ooo 
workers in small undertakings employing less 
than eight workers and working less than twenty 
weeks in the year, and 3 million domestic servants 
were excluded from benefit. The provision which 
excluded from benefit those unemployed as a 
result of strikes enabled employers to dismiss 
such .workers and thus to deprive them of unem
ployment benefit. In nearly every State benefits 
were paid, on a most inadequate scale, only for 
a period not exceeding twenty-six weeks. The 
report of the Congress of Industrial Organiza
tions, from which he had previously quoted, had 
published a statement that average unemployment 
benefit amounted to one-third of the normal wage 
and was quite inadequate to maintain even the 
lowest level of subsistence ; the report had gone 
on to urge that the scale of benefits should be 
increased and that benefits should be paid for 
at least thirty weeks. 

Paragraph I (a) of the draft resolution sub
mitted by his Federation simply corresponded to 
the demand of the Congress of Industrial Orga
nizations. 

The other proposals in the draft resolution 
were equally practical and feasible. He urged 
that they should be accepted, and asked that 
they be appraised on their intrinsic merits, and 
not in relation to their provenance. The popular 
masses had so far retained their confidence in the 
generous and humane principles inspiring the 
Charter of the United Nations, and in the United 
Nations itself; it was in no way in the general 
interests of the people that that confidence should 
be betrayed. Rather, it should be reinforced, as 
it would undoubtedly be if, at the present dan
gerous turning-point in the world economic situa-

de rapport entre les mesures que reclame le projet 
de resolution et celles. qui ont ete reellement 
appliquees dans les divers pays. 

On a declare, par exemple, que les propositions 
du projet de resolution sont deja appliquees en 
France, ou un systeme d'assurance contre le 
chOmage, complete par des allocations familiales, 
garantirait deja aux chomeurs les secours neces
saires ; mais de tels secours sont limites par un 
certain nombre de conditions. Les travailleurs 
en chomage doivent prouver, avant d'avoir droit 
aux secours, qu'ils n'ont aucune obligation envers 
leur dernier employeur ; qu'ils ont travaille pen
dant au moins six mois, et ont ete domicilies dans 
la meme commune pendant au moins trois mois. 
S'ils refusent l'emploi que leur offrent les Bourses 
du Travail, soit dans la localite ou ils habitent, 
soit ailleurs, leur secours de chomage est genera
lement supprime. Les municipalites sont autori
sees a les employer deux ou trois jours par 
semaine et, s'ils refusent, ils peuvent etre rayes 
des listes de chomeurs. En outre, le secours n'est 
pas accorde a ceux qui sont en ch6mage a la suite 
de greves, ce qui met une arme de plus entre les 
mains des employeurs. La Federation syndicale 
mondiale demande un systeme tout different, qui 
prevoit des secours suffisants pour garantir un ni
veau de vie decent a tons les travailleurs en cho
mage ainsi qu'a leurs familles, pendant toute la 
duree de leur chomage, du premier au dernier jour. 

Aux Etats-Unis d'Amerique, !'assurance contre 
le chomage est de la meme nature qu'eu France; 
elle ne s'etend nullement a tons les travailleurs. 
Plus d'un million de travailleurs agricoles, 2.JOo.ooo 
travailleurs des petites entreprises employant 
moins de huit ouvriers et travaillant moius de 
vingt semaines par an, ainsi que trois millions 
de domestiques, ne sont pas admis a en beneficier. 
La disposition qui en exclut ceux qui sont en 
chomage a la suite de greves permet aux em
ployeurs, en renvoyant les grevistes, de les priver 
des allocations de chomage. Dans presque tous 
les Etats, les allocations ne sont payees, a un taux 
fort insuffisant, que pendant vingt-six semaines 
au maximum. 11 ressort du rapport du « Congress 
of Industrial Organizations ll, auquel l'orateur a 
precedemment emprunte une citation, que !'alloca
tion moyenne de chomage equivaut a un tiers du 
salaire normal, et est tout a fait insuffisante pour 
assurer la subsistance des ch6meurs meme au 
niveau le plus bas ; les auteurs du rapport deman
dent que le taux des allocations soit augmente, et 
que ces allocations soient payees pendant trente 
semaines au mains. 

Le paragraphe I a) du projet de resolution 
soumis par la Federation syndicale mondiale 
correspond simplement a la revendication du 
<< Congress of Industrial Organizations ». 

Les autres propositions qui figurent dans 1~ 
projet de resolution sont egalement pratiques et 
realisables. M. di Vittorio insiste pour qu'elles 
soient acceptees et demande qu'on les juge sur 
leur valeur intrinseque et non sur leur origine. 
Les masses populaires ont encore, jusqu'ici, con
fiance dans les principes genereux et humains qui 
inspirent Ia Charte des Nations Unies ainsi qu'en 
!'Organisation meme des Nations Unies. 11 n'est 
nullement conforme aux inten~ts generaux du 
peuple que cette confiance soit trahie ; elle doit 
plut6t etre fortifiee et elle le serait sans aucun 
doute si, au moment ou la situation economique 

762 



tion, when millions of workers were menaced by 
unemplo}'Tilent and hunger, the Economic and 
Social Council, as an organ of the United Nations, 
were to make a generous gesture by recommending 
measures to check or mitigate unemployment 
and ease the lot of the unemployed. Such measures 
would serve the cause both of social progress and 
of peace. 

Mr. CoRLEY SMITH (United Kingdom), replying 
to a statement made by the Soviet Union repre
sentative at a previous meeting, poi11ted out that 
he had not denied th~:: existence of monopolies. 
What he had said was that those responsible for 
the report of the World Federation of Trade 
Unions lived in a strange mythical world in which 
trusts and monopolies prowled around seeking 
whom they might devour ; they had represented 
those trusts as a kind of universal bogey, occupying 
a place in their mythology similar to that of the 
Jews in the mythology of. Hitler. He had not 
been speaking in favour of monopolies, but pro
testing against an over-simplification of the case, 
in which every evil in the world was laid at the 
door of trusts and monopolies. 

A ~econd point which required clarification 
referred to the mobility of labour. Mr. Hector 
McNeil's reference to the distance 4e had to travel 
from Scotland to his work in Westminster had 
been made in jest, and not as an illustration of 
generally prevailing conditions. What he (Mr. 
McNeil) had said was that a lack of mobility of la
bour was one of the reasons for the simultaneous 
existence in the United Kingdom of a certain 
number of unemployed and a larger number of 
unfilled jobs. When a coal mine could no longer 
be worked, for instance, and had to be closed 
down, a certain number of its workers, because of 
family ties or for other reasons, could not be 
transferred elsewhere immediately and thus figured 
in the statistics of unemployed. He would enquire 
with all seriousness of the Soviet Union repre
sentative how workers in the Soviet Union were 
transferred from one job to another without any 

·such transitional unemployment. According .to 
his information, when a factory in the Soviet 
Union laid off workers, notices were posted up 
outside showing what other jobs were available. 
It seemed a less effective system than that of the 
British Labour Exchanges, but he would be 
willing to learn of any new technique by which 
transfers of labour could be speeded up. 

Both the Soviet Union representative and the 
consultant from the \Vorld Federation of Trade 
Unions had spoken of the Marshall Plan, and had 
endeavoured to substantiate the theory that the 
Marshall Plan entailed unemployment. The expe
rience of his country lent no support to such a 
thesis. There had been little unemployment in the 
United Kingdom since the end of the war, so that 
the Marshall Plan could not have brought about 
any substantial decrease in employment. The 
figures of unemployed for the first six months of 
I949 showed a steady decrease from 4I2,ooo in 
January to 29I,ooo in June, while the July figures, 
which would be published within a few days, were 
expected to show a further substantial drop. 
The latest figures were lower than those for the 

mondiale amorce un virage dangereux et on des 
millions de travailleurs sont menaces par le cho-

. mage et la faim, le Conseil economique et social en 
tant qu'organe des Nations Unies faisait un geste 
genereux en recommandant des mesures qui 
permettent d'enrayer ou d'attenuer le chomage 
et d'ameliorer la condition des chomeurs. De 
telles mesures serviraient a la fois la cause du 
progres social et celle de la .paix. 

M. CORLEY SMITH (Royaume-Uni), en reponse 
a une declaration du representant de l'Union 
sovietique faite lors d'une seance precedente, fait 
remarquer qu'il n'a pas nie !'existence des mono
poles. Ce qu'il a diklare, c'est que les auteurs du 
rapport de la Federation syndicale mondiale vivent 
dans un etrange univers mythique ou trusts et 
monopoles rodent a la recherche d'une proie a 
devorer, et qu'ils ont represente ces trusts sons les 
traits d'une espece de croquemitaine partout pre
sent et occupant dans leur mythologie nne .place 
analogue a celle des Juifs dans la mythologie 
hitlerienne. Il n'a pas pris la defense des mono
poles, mais il a proteste contre la vision simpliste 
de ceux qui attribnent a !'action des monopoles 
et des trusts tons les manx dont souffre le monde. 

Un autre point qui demande a etre precise 
est celui de la mobilite de la main-d'ceuvre. Lor'sque 
M. Hector McNeil a fait allusion a la distance qu'il 
doit parcourir pour aller d'Ecosse a son lieu de 
travail, Westminster, il l'a fait en plaisantant et 
non pour donner un exemple de situation qui se 
presente souvent. Ce que M. McNeil a dit, c'est 
que le manque de mobilite de la main-d'ceuvre est 
nne des raisons qui expliquent 1' existence simul
tanee, au Royaume-Uni, d'un certain nombre de 
ch6meurs et d'un nombre plus important d'emplois 
non pourvus. Lorsque, par exemple, une mine de 
charbon ne peut plus etre exploitee, et qu'il faut 
la fermer, un certain nombre des travailleurs 
qu'elle emploie ne peuvent pas, a cause de liens de 
famille ou pour d'autres raisons, etre immediate
ment transferes ailleurs, et ils figurent par suite 
dans les statistiques de chomage. M .. Corley Smith 
voudrait demander en toute sincerite au represen
tant de l'Union sovietique comment les travailleurs 
en Union sovietique sont transferes d'un emploi 
a un autre sans chomage transitoire de ce genre. 
II croit savoir qu'en Union sovietique, quand une 
usine renvoie des ouvriers, on affiche a l'exterieur 
des listes d'autres emplois qui sont disponibles. Cela 
paralt un systeme moins efficace que celui des 
bourses du travail britanniques ; mais il voudrait 
bien savoir s'il existe un procede nouveau permet
tant d'accelerer les transferts de main-d'ceuvre. 

Le representant de FUnion sovietique et le 
consultant de la Federation syndicale mondiale se 
sont l'un et l'autre efforces, en parlant du Plan 
Marshall, de donner corps a la theorie selon laquelle 
ce Plan serait nne cause de chomage. L'experience 
de son pays n'apporte aucun appui a cette these. 
Comme il y a peu de cMmage au Royaume-Uni 
depuis la fin de la guerre, le Plan Marshall ne 
pouvait entrainer aucune diminution notable du 
nombre des chomeurs. Cependant, les chiffres de 
chomage pour les six premiers mois de 1949 font 
apparaitre une diminution reguliere. Le nombre 
des chomeurs, qui etait de 4!2.000 en janvier, est 
tombe a 29!.000 en juin, et l'on s'attend que les 
chiffres de juillet, qui seront publies dans quelques 
jours, accusent une nouvelle chute notable. Les 

763 



corresponding period in I948 and lower than at 
the beginning of the Marshall Plan. 

He did not wish to exaggerate the importance 
of such figures. The United Kingdom was faced 
by serious problems, but unemployment did not 
happen to be one of them. Like the Soviet Union, 
it had suffered immense losses in resources as a 
result of the war, when for six years it had spent 
6o % of the national income on the prosecution 
of the war, sacrificing in the same interest the 
bulk of its foreign investments, and contracting 
enormous debts. The biggest difficulty was that of 
the balance of payments, which involved the 
danger of a lack of sufficient foreign exchange to 
pay for necessary imports, on which the United 
Kingdom was far more dependent than the Soviet 
Union. Without the Marshall Plan, there would 
have been a high level of unemployment, not 
because of any lack of effective demand, but 
because of the lack of foreign exchange to bring in 
raw materials to keep the factories running and to 
bring in food to keep the people alive. The attack 
on the Marshall Plan as a promoter of unem
ployment was thus entirely out of place. 

The United Kingdom was still importing labour, 
though not on a large scale. There were still 
vacancies in certain industries, and a limited 
number of foreign workers, including some from 
Mr. di Vittorio's country, would be welcome. 
Efforts had been made to increase the mobility of 
labour by providing transfer grants and by re
training schemes, and although a residue of unem
ployed remained, it had dwindled from I Yz % to 
I J4% during the past year. There were other 
countries, which were not beneficiaries under the 
Marshall Plan, which were much more seriously 
affected by unemployment. 

He personally fully realized the seriousness of 
the problem of unemployment, since he had 
grown up in an area which had suffered acutely 
from unemployment between the wars; he therefore 
felt the more indignant at the manner in which 
the question had been approached, and at the way 
in which the insecurity of the worker had been 
exploited for propaganda purposes. · It was untrue 
that it was due to the initiative of the World 
Federation of Trade Unions that the problem was 
on the·agenda; it would have come up in any case 
on the report of the Economic and Employment 
Commission. 

It was, of course, entirely proper that the World 
Federation of Trade Unions, a body admitted to 
consultative status with the United Nations, 
should raise. the question, but it was unfortunate 
that it had not done so earlier. The United 
Kingdom, with the support of Australia, had been 
striving for three years to secure action in that 
most important field. He was, to a limited extent, 
grateful to the World Federation of Trade Unions 
for having at last also joined in raising the problem, 
but regretted that it should have delayed its action 
until the question could be used for propaganda 
purposes. The problem should have been dealt 
with in an atmosphere of calm at a time when 
there was no considerable volume of unemploy
ment. He would agree with the Federation that 
the work of the Economic and Social Council in 
the field had been inadequate, but he deprecated 

derniers chiffres publies etaient inferieurs a ceux 
de la periode correspondante de I948 et infe
rieurs egalement a ceux du debut de !'application 
du Plan Marshall. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni ne voudrait 
pas exagerer !'importance de tels chiffres. Le 
Royaume-Uni doit faire face a de graves problemes, 
mais il se trouve que le chomage ne figure pas au 
nombre de ces problemes. Comme l'Union sovie~ 
tique, le Royaume-Uni a perdu d'immenses 
ressources par suite de la guerre ; en six ans, il a 
depense, pour mener cette guerre, 6o % du revenu 
national, saqrifiant a cette meme fin la majeure 
partie de ses investissements etrangers et contrac
tant des dettes enormes. La plus grande difficulte 
est celle qui a trait a la balance des paiements, et 
le Royaume~Uni risque de manquer de devises 
etrangeres pour payer les importations indispen
sables dont il depend pour sa subsistance beaucoup 
plus que l'Union sovietique. Sans le Plan Marshall, 
il y aurait eu beaucoup de chomage, non pas faute 
de demande effective, mais faute de devises etran
geres permettant d'importer les matieres pre
mieres necessaires pour continuer a faire marcher 
les usines, et les denrees necessaires pour nourrir 
la population. Il est tout a fait deplace de repro
cher au Plan Marshall d' engendrer le chomage. 

Le Royaume-Uni continue d'importer de la main
d'reuvre mais en petite quantite. Il y a encore des 
emplois vacants dans certaines industries, et un 
petit nombre de travailleurs etrangers, y compris 
des compatriotes de M. di Vittorio, seraient les 
bienvenus. On s'est efforce d'accroi:tre la mobilite 
de la main-d'reuvre en accordant des primes de 
transfert et en organisant la reeducation profes
sionnelle. Bien qu'il reste encore des chomeurs, la 
proportion a baisse, pendant la derniere annee, de 
I Yz% a I }4 %- Certains.autres pays qui ne bene
ficient pas du Plan Marshall souffrent bien davan
tage du chomage. 

L'importance du probleme du chOmage n'echappe 
pas au representant du Royaume-Uni, car il a 
grandi dans une region qui a profondement souffert 
du chomage entre les deux guerres. C' est pourquoi 
il s'indigne de la fa<;on dont le probleme a ete 
aborde et de la maniE~re dont l'insecurite du tra
vailleur a ete exploitee a des fins de propagande. 
Il est inexact de dire que c'est sur l'initiative de la 
Federation syndicale mondiale que la question a 
ete inscrite a l'ordre du jour; cette question se serait 
posee dans tous les cas a propos du rapport de la 
Commission des questions economiques et de 
l'emploi. 

I1 est tout a fait normal que la Federation syndi
cale mondiale, qui jouit aupres des Nations Unies 
du statut consultatif, souleve la question ; mais 
il est dommage qu'elle ne l'ait pas fait plus 
t6t. Le Royaume-U ni, appuye par l' Australie, 
lutte depuis trois ans pour qu'une action soit 
entreprise dans ce domaine particulierement impor
tant, et son representant est, dans une certaine 
mesure, reconnaissant a la Federation syndicale 
mondiale de s'etre ralliee en dernier lieu a l'idee de 
soulever le probleme; il regrette seulement qu'elle 
ait retarde son geste jusqu:au moment ou la 
question pouvait etre utilisee a des fins de pro
pagande. Le probleme aurait dft etre traite dans 
une atmosphere calme, alors que le chomage n'avait 
pas encore pris une grande extension. L' orateur 
pense, comme la Federation syndicale mondiale, 
que l'action du Conseil economique et social dans 

764 



the Federation's unscientific approach, which had 
been questionable with regard to all the problems 
it had touched upon. When the Federation had 
been founded, it had been warned by the General 
Secretary of the British Trade Unions Congress 
that it should concentrate on industrial problems 
and refrain from playing politics, otherwise it 
would disintegrate; it looked as if the fate pro
phesied for it was now overtaking it. 

While accusing no one of having falsified figures, 
he would point out that any thesis could be 
substantiated by selecting figures from the volu
minous statistics at present published in the world. 
The World Federation of Trade Unions had started 
out with a thesis and had attempted to prove it 
by manipulating statistics, in a manner unworthy 
of a large organization representing many trade 
unions. In the report which the Federation had 
submitted to the Secretary-General (Ej1332jAdd.1), 
the figures for unemployment in a large number of 
countries were given on page 5, but on page 6 the 
indices for increases of unemployment had been 
omitted where they did not support the thesis as, for 
example, in the case of Norway. The figures for 
Italy had also been left out because, although 
the situation there was bad, there had nevertheless 
been some improvement. The impression given 
by the figures for France was also misleading. In 
yet other cases, the indices for increase of unem
ployment were almost meaningless; thus, the 
index for the month of March 1949 in Switzerland 
was 664 %, but the original figure for unemploy
ment on which that percentage had been calculated 
was the almost negligible one of 1,ooo. It was 
impossible to regard such a manipulation of 
statistics as a scientific approach to the problem. 
What was required was a serious study of unem
ployment. 

He also denied the main thesis underlying the 
Federation's report- namely, that the root cause 
of the economic crisis, and thus of unemployment, 
was the fact that the purchasing power of the 
working class was constantly declining whereas 
production capacity was increasing. In his and 
many other countries, the standard of living of 
the workers had increased in the century since 
Marx had issued the Communist manifesto pre
dicting that constant decline. The Federation 
report stated that "in the European countries the 
national reconstruction and equipment policies 
adopted immediately after the war have since 
been either completely abandoned or emascu
lated". That might be true of the Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics and of Poland - though 
the Federation had produced no evidence in support 
of its statement - but it was certainly not true of 
the United Kingdom. Nor had control of invest
ments ever been exercised by representative trade 
union organizations in his country. Such control 
had always been exercised by the Government, 
and he found it difficult to believe that the trade 
unions discharged that function in the Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics. 

Several of the introductory paragraphs to the 
draft resolution submitted by the World Federa-

ce domaine n'a pas ete ce qu'elle aurait dti etre, 
mais il desapprouve la fac;on peu scientifique dont 
le probleme a ete aborde par la Federation, !'atti
tude de celle-d dans tous les domaines ou elle est 
intervenue ayant ete discutable. Lorsque la Fede
ration syndicale mondiale a ete creee, le Secretaire 
general du Congres des syndicats britanniques lui 
a conseille de se consacrer aux problemes de l'indus
trie et de s'abstenir de toute politique, sous peine 
de provoquer sa propre desagregation. Il semble 
que cette prophetie soit en train de se realiser. 

Sans vouloir accuser personne d'avoir falsifie les 
chiffres, M. Corley Smith fait observer que les 
volumineuses statistiques qui se publient actuelle
ment dans le monde permettent, si l'on choisit bien 
ses chiffres, de soutenir n'importe queUe these. La 
Federation syndicale mondiale a etabli une these, 
et essaye de la justifier en prenant a l'egard des 
statistiques des libertes indignes d'une grande 
organisation representant de nombreux syndicats. 
Dans le rapport que la Federation a presente au 
Secretaire general (Ej1332/Add.1) figurent, a la 
page 5, les chiffres du ch6mage dans un grand 
nombre de pays, mais, a la page 6, on n'a pas 
indique les indices d'augmentation du ch6mage 
lorsqu'ils ne venaient pas a l'appui de la these de 
la Federation; c'est ainsi que la Norvege ne figure 
pas dans ce tableau. L'Italie n'y figure pas non plus 
parce que, si la situation y est mauvaise, il s'y est 
neanmoins produit une certaine amelioration. 
L'impression donnee par les chiffres relatifs a la 
France est egalement fausse. Pour d'autres pays, 
les indices d'augmentation du chiffre du ch6mage 
sont presque sans signification ; ainsi l'indice de la 
Suisse pour le mois de mars 1949 est de 664 %, 
mais le chiffre primitif sur la base duquel ce pour
centage a ete calcule est presque negligeable : 
r.ooo ch6meurs. Il est impossible de voir, dans 
cette fac;on de traiter les statistiques, une maniere 
scientifique d'aborder le probleme. Ce qu'il faut, 
c'est etudier serieusement le probleme du ch6-
mage. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni combat egale
ment la these sur laquelle repose le rapport de la 
Federation, a savoir que la cause essentielle de la 
crise economique, et par consequent du ch6mage, 
est que le pouvoir d'achat de la classe ouvriere 
diminue constamment alors que la capacite de 
production augmente. Dans le Royaume-Uni et 
dans bien d'autres pays, loin de baisser, le niveau 
de vie des travailleurs s'est eleve au cours du siecle 
qui s'est ecoule depuis que Marx a publie son 
M anifeste communiste predisant une baisse conti
nue. La Federation declare que, dans·les pays euro
peens, les politiques nationales de reconstruction 
et d' equipement adoptees au lendemain de la 
guerre out ete, par la suite << soit totalement aban
donnees, soit videes de leur contenu reel>>. Il en est 
peut-etre ainsi dans l'Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques et en Pologne, bien que la Federa
tion ne fournisse aucune preuve a l'appui de sa 
declaration, mais ce n'est certainement pas le cas 
dans le Royaume-Uni. Les organisations syndicales 
representatives n'ont jamais, d'ailleurs, exerce de 
contr6le sur les investissements; ce contr6le a 
toujours ete exerce par le Gouvernement, et il est 
difficile de croire que, dans l'Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques, cette fonction soit remplie 
par les syndicats. 

Plusieurs alineas du preambule du projet de 
resolution presente par la Federation syndicale 

765 



tion of Trade Unions (E/I332/Add.2) were excel
lent, and most of the countries represented in the 
Economic and Social Council were in fact carrying 
out certain of the policies recommended in the 
body of the resolution. For example, most had 
introduced; or were introducing, systems of unem
ployment insurance more or less on the lines 
recommended in paragraph (r) (a). As regards 
sub-paragraph (b), that there had been an increase 
in the purchasing power of wage-earners in his 
country was made clear by the fact that the 
share of the total national income accruing to the 
working classes had increased considerably during 
the last ten years. As for the democratic reform 
of taxation recommended in the same sub-para
graph, his country had a much more steeply 
graduated scale of income tax assessment than had 
the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics ; whereas 
in the latter the highest tax imposed at any level 
was 13 %, in the former it reached 97 Yz % at 
the highest levels, so that the wealthy retained· 
only 2 ¥2 % of their income above a certain figure. 
If the World Federation of Trade Unions was 
proposing democratic reform of taxation in the 
Union -of Soviet Socialist Republics, his country 
fully supported the recommendation. 

In the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, the 
Soviet Union representative had stated in a pre
vious debate, workers were- rewarded by deco
rations, such as that of Hero of Labour, granted, 
presumably, for long and intensive work. In 
that country there also existed labour shock 
brigades and the Stakhanovite system, a system 
which had originated there and nowhere else. It 
did not seem to him that the existence of such 
brigades, system and decorations was in any way 
intended to bring about the reduction of working
hours and the lessening of the intensity of work 
recommended in paragraph (r) (c) of the resolu
tion submitted by the World Federation of Trade 
Unions. His own country, because of its impo
verishment by the war, and the amount of leeway 
it had consequently to make up, could not at 
present afford to lessen the intensity of work, 

• desirable though it might be. When it had 
succeeded in surmounting the difficulties left as 
a legacy of the war, it would be able to choose 
between the alternatives of greater leisure for 
workers or a higher standard of living. 

His country had probably done more than any 
other to create, develop and extend a broad system 
of vocational training, as recommended in para
graph (r) (d) ofthe draft resolution. Whenever it 
had sufficient labour and materials to spare, it 
would be very happy to initiate additional large
scale programmes of productive public works, as 
recommended in sub-paragraph (e), particularly 
in the reconstruction of those destroyed by Hitler. 

It seemed· to him that the core of the resolution 
was paragraph (I) (f). His country would strongly 
support the reduction of expenditure on armaments 
if the international situation were such that it 
dared disarm ; and he felt that other nations repre
sented in the Council were in the same position. 
It was the first time that he had seen it suggested 
that a reduction in expenditure on armaments was 

mondiale (E/I332/Add.2) semblent excellents, et 
les pays representes au Conseil economique et 
social appliquent en fait, pour la plupart, certains 
des principes recommandes par cette resolution. 
Beaucoup d'entre eux, par exemple, ont mis ou 
sont en train de mettre en vigueur des systemes 
d'assurance-ch6mage s'inspirant plus ou mains des 
principes recommandes a l'alinea a) du para
graphe I. En ce qui concerne l'alinea b), le fait que 
la part des classes laborieuses dans !'ensemble du 
revenu national s'est considerablement accrue 
pendant ces dix dernieres annees demontre claire
ment !'augmentation du pouvoir d'achat des 
salaries dans le Royaume-Uni. Quant ala reforme 
democratique de la fiscalite recommandee dans ce 
meme alinea, le bareme de l'impot sur le revenu 
s'eleve beaucoup plus rapidement dans le Royaume
Uni que dans l'Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques. En effet, alop; qu'en Union sovietique, 
le taux d'imposition le plus eleve est de I3 %, 
dans le Royaume-Uni il atteint 97 ¥2 %, de telle 
sorte qu'au-dessus d'un certain chiffre, les classes 
riches ne conservent que 2 ¥2 %. Si la Federation 
syndicale mondiale entend proposer une reforme 
democratique de la fiscalite en Union sovietique, le 
Royaume-Uni appuie fortement cette recomman
dation. 

Le representant de l'Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques a declare, au cours d'une 
intervention precedente, que, dans l'Union sovie
tique, on recompense les travailleurs en leur decer
nant des distinctions honorifiques, comme le titre 
de «heros du travail ll, accorde sans doute apres de 
longues annees de travail intense. Ce pays connait 
aussi les brigades de choc du travail et le systeme 
du stakhanovisme, qui y a pris naissance et n''a 
pas ete invente ailleurs. Le representant du 
Royaume-Uni ne pense pas que ces brigades, ce 
systeme et ces distinctions visent en aucune fac;on 
a diminuer la dun~e et l'intensite du travail, 
ainsi que le recommande l'alinea c) du paragraphe I 
de la resolution presentee par la Federation syndi
cale mondiale. Le Royaume-Uni, en raison de 
l'appauvrissement dont i1 souffre par suite de la 
guerre, et du retard qu'il a par consequent a rattra
per, ne peut actuellement se permettre de diminuer 
l'intensite du travail, quelque souhaitable que 
cette mesure lui paraisse. Lorsqu'il aura reussi a 
surmonter les difficultes que lui a leguees la guerre, 
il pourra choisir entre une augmentation des loisirs 
des travailleurs et une elevation de leur niveau 
de vie. 

Le Royaume-Uni a fait probablement plus que 
n'importe quel autre pays pour la creation, le 
developpement et !'extension d'un large systeme 
de formation professionnelle, recommandes a 
l'alinea d) du paragraphe I du projet de resolution. 
Des qu'il aura assez de main-d'reuvre et de mate
riaux, il sera heureux d'entreprendre de vastes 
programmes supplementaires de travaux publics 
productifs, ainsi que le recommande l'alinea e), et 
tout particulierement, de reconstruire les edifices 
detruits par Hitler. 

Il semble au representant du Royaume-Uni que 
l'alinea f) du paragraphe I constitue la partie essen~ 
tielle de la resolution. Son pays se prononcerait 
fermement en faveur de la reduction des depenses 
d'armement si la situation intemationale lui per
mettait de desarmer, et il pense que tons les autres 
pays representes au_ Conseil sont dans les memes 
dispositions. C'est la premiere fois qu'il .entend 

766 



a cure for unemployment ; such a suggestion could 
not easily be reconciled with the assertion, made 
elsewhere by the World Federation of Trade Unions, 
that wicked capitalists were promoting war and 
expenditure on armaments in order to stave off 
unemployment. The recommendation should rea
sonably be addressed to the country with the 
largest army, and there equid be no doubt which 
that country was. The Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics had an estimated 4 million men unP.er 
arms. Both the United States of America and 
France were with very great spending 6 % 
of their national incomes on armaments, and his 
own country 8 %- The reason for that expenditure 
was that the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics 
was spending 15 % of its national income on arma
ments. His own country would very much like to 
release the labour engaged in the armed forces and 
on armaments and divert both it and the expendi
ture involved to peaceful ends. But while the 
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics continued to 
spend the enormous sums it did in that field, it 
was impossible to adopt the recommendation made 
in sub-paragraph (f). 

The whole resolution submitted by the World 
Federation of Trade Unions, while it contained 
much that was worthy of support, was in fact a 
collection of miscellaneous complaints and accusa
tions intended solely for propaganda purposes. 
His delegation would therefore oppose it. 

Mr. ADARKAR (India) pointed out that the 
items on the agenda were the report of the fourth 
session of the Economic and Employment Com
mission ; and the problem of unemployment and 
full employment. The discussion had, however, 
degenerated into a debate on the merits and 
demerits of capitalism and communism and the 
sins of omission and commission of those two 
political systems. The Council had heard that 
debate at every session, and it had also recurred 
periodically in the General Assembly. He would 
therefore formally move, under rule 57 of the rules 
of procedure, that the time allotted to each speaker 
be limited to ten minutes. 

Mr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) considered the Indian representative's 
motion inappropriate at that stage, as the United 
Kingdom representative had just indulged p.t very 
great length in pure political propaganda bearing 
no relation to the question before the Council ; in 
equity the Soviet Union delegation should be 
permitted to reply also at length. He suggested, 
therefore, that either he be allowed the same length 
of time for a reply, or the proposed limitation be 
accepted, and the United Kingdom representative's 
remarks ruled out of order. 

The PRESIDENT said that it was impossible for 
him at that stage to rule the United Kingdom 
representative's remarks out of order; it had 
seemed to him that the various comments he had 
made had borne a definite relation to points made 
in the report and the resolution submitted by the 
World Federation of Trade Unions. If any repre-

affirmer que la reduction des depenses d~armement 
soit un remede contre le chomage ; cette affirmation 
est difficilement conciliable avec cette autre asser
tion de la Federation syndicale mondiale, selon 
laquelle les mechants capitalistes poussent en fait 
a la guerre et aux depenses d'armement afin de 
parer au chomage. La recommandation devrait 
plut6t s'adresser au· pays qui possede l'armee la 
plus nombreuse du monde, et tout le monde sait 
quel est ce pays. L'Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques a environ 4 millions d'hommes 
sous les armes. Les Etats-Unis et la France consa
crent, a leur grand regret, 6 % de leur revenu 
national aux depenses d'armement, etle Royaume
Uni 8 %· S'ils le font, c'est parce que l'Union sovie
tique depense, elle, r5·% de son revenu national 
en armements. Le Royaume-Uni serait heureux de 
liberer la main-d'ceuvre affech~e aux forces armees 
et aux armements, et de !'employer, ainsi que les 
fonds qui deviendraient ainsi disponibles, a des 
fins pacifiques. Mais taut que l'Union sovietique 
continuera de consacrer d'enormes sommes aux 
armements, il est impossible d'adopter la recom
mandation qui fait !'objet de l'alinea f). 

Bien qu'elle contienne de nombreuses dispositions 
qui meriteraient d'etre appuyees, la resolution 
presentee ,par la Federation syndicale mondiale 
constitue, en fait, une serie de doieances et d'accu
sations diverses, enoncees uniquement a des fins 
de propagande. C' est pourquoi la delegation du 
Royaume-Uni votera contre le projet. 

M. ADARKAR (lnde) fait observer que l'ordre du 
jour porte : Exam en du Tapport de la Commission 
des questions economiques et de l'emploi sur sa 
quatrieme session; et le probleme du chOmage et du 
plein emploi. Cependant, le debat a degenere en une 
discussion sur les qualites et defauts respectifs du 
capitalisme et du communisme; et sur tous les 
peches, par action ou par omission, dont ces deux 
systemes politiques sont coupables. A chaque 
session, le Conseil a entendu les memes discours que 
l'on entend aussi periodiquement a l'Assemblee 
generale. C' est pourquoi M. Adarkar propose 
officiellement qu'en application de !'article 57 du 
reglement interieur du Conseil, le temps accorde a 
chaque orateur soit limite a dix minutes. 

M. ARUTIUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) estime que la motion du repre
sentant de l'Inde est inopportune au stade actuel 
des debats, car le representant du Royaume-Uni 
s' est laisse aller a prononcer un long discours de 
pure propagande politique, sans aucun rapport 
avec la question dont le Conseil est saisi. En bonne 
justice, la delegation de l'Union sovietique devrait 
etre autorisee a y repondre a loisir. C'est pourquoi, 
M. Arutiunian demande qu'on lui accorde le meme 
temps pour repondre ou alors, si le Conseil accepte 
la proposition de limiter la duree de chaque inter
vention, que le President declare que les observa
tions du representant du Royaume-Uni etaient 
hors du cadre de la discussion. 

Le PRESIDENT declare qu'il lui est impossible, 
au stade actuel du debat, de declarer que les 
observations du representant du Royaume-Uni 
etaient hors du cadre des debats. 11 lui a semble 
que les divers observations formulees par le 
sentant du Royaume-Uni avaient 'directement 
trait aux questions soulevees dans le rapport et 

767 



sentative wished for more than ten minutes in 
which to make his speech he was entitled to vote 
against the motion. 

Mr. STINEBOWER (United States of America) 
said that the representatives had met in high hope, 
after the afternoon meeting, that the work of the 
Council would be dealt with expeditiously. He 
had been disappointed at the length of the speeches 
made by the representatives of the World Federa
tion of Trade Unions and of the United Kingdom, 
for while not denying each representative's right 
to speak as fully as he thought fit on items of the 
agenda, he considered that if they spoke at exces
sive length the problem of disposing of the agenda 
would be greatly complicated. He appreciated the 
point of view of the Soviet Union representative, 
but, as the views held by the Soviet Union had 
been expounded earlier at great length, not only by 
members of that delegation, but by the Polish 
delegation and by the representative of the World 
Federation of Trade Unions, he would support the 
Indian proposal. 

Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) opposed the Indian 
proposal for reasons of principle. The Council had 
permitted full-length discussions of items of much 
less interest and importance than unemployment, 
and in taking. a final decision on such a serious 
problem there should be nolimitation on the right 
to speak that had not been imposed for any other 
item. As the closing date of the session was so near, 
he was certain that all delegations were anxious 
that the agenda should be fully disposed of, but 
he considered that the amount of time devoted by 
each speaker to the subject should be a matter 
rather for the discretion of individual delegations 
than of rigid rule. He therefore appealed to the 
Indian representative to withdraw his proposal. 

The Indian motion that the time allowed to each 
speaker on items 8 and 49 be henceforth limited to 
ten minutes was adopted by 9 votes to 4, with 4 absten
tions. 

Mr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that the United Kingdom represen
tative had been deliberately provocative in turning 
the discussion of a practical proposal into a poli
tical debate. He had already shown that the 
reason for such an attitude was dictated by definite 
political and economic considerations actuating the 
Government of the United Kingdom. It was, 
moreover, impossible to treat the United Kingdom 
representative's statement seriously. He had 
admitted that he was not well informed on the 
question of the mobility of labour in his (the Soviet 
Union representative's) country, but had at the 
same time claimed to bean expert on labour prob
lems. It was a violation of the elementary rules 
of debate that a speaker should embark upon a 
subject without being properly informed upon it. 

It was clear that the Government of the United 
Kirigdom was not at all happy about the present 
economic state of that country, ·and would like to 
throw the burden of responsibility for it on to 
some other country. It could not, however, trans
fer the responsibility to the shoulders of his own 

768 

dans la resolution de la Federation syndicale 
mondiale. Si un membre du Comite desire parler 
pendant plus de dix minutes, il a le droit de voter 
contre Ia motion. 

M. STINEBOWER (Etats-Unis d' Amerique) fait 
observer que les representants se sont reunis avec 
le ferme espoir qu'apres la seance de l'apres-Inidi, 
l'on activerait les travaux du Conseil. II a constate 
avec regret la longueur des interventions des repre
sentants de Ia Federation syndicale mondiale et du 
Royaume-Uni ; chaque orateur a incontestablement 
le droit de parler aussi longuement qu'ille juge bon, 
a propos des questions inscrites a l'ordre du jour; 
mais il n'en est pas moins vrai que, si Ies interven
tions se prolongent demesurement, il va devenir 
tres difficile d'epuiser l'ordre du jour. M. Stine
hower comprend le point de vue du representant 
de !'Union sovietique ; mais comme la position de 
!'Union sovietique a deja ete longuement definie 
non seulement par les membres de la delegation 
sovietique, mais par la delegation polonaise et par 
le representant de la Federation syndicale mondiale, 
il appuiera la proposition de l'Inde. 

M. KATZ-SUCHY (Pologne) combat la proposi
tion de l'Inde pour des raisons de principe. Le 
Conseil a autorise la discussion approfondie de 
questions qui presentent beaucoup moins. d'interet 
et d'importance que celle du chomage, et, au 
moment de prendre une decision finale au sujet 
d'un probleme aussi grave, on ne devrait pas 
limiter le temps accorde a chaque orateur, ce qu'on 
n'a fait pour aucun autre sujet. La date de clOture 
de la session etant imminente, il est.certain que 
toutes les delegations sont desireuses d'epuiser 
entierement l'ordre du jour; mais M. Katz-Suchy 
estime que l'on devrait laisser toute liberte aux 
delegations de juger du temps que chaque orateur 
doit consacrer a la question plutOt que d'imposer 
une regie stricte. C'est pourquoi il demande au 
representant de l'Inde de retirer sa proposition. 

La proposition du representant de l'Inde tendant a 
limiter J IO minutes le temps accorde a chacun des 
orateurs qui interviendront a propos des points 8 et 
49 de l' ordre du four est adoptee par 9 voix contre 4, 
avec 4 abstentions. 

l\1. ARUTIUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) denonce !'attitude deliberement 
provocatrice du representant du Royaume-Uni, qui 
a transforme l'examen d'une proposition pratique 
en un debat politique. II a deja montre que cette 
attitude. du Gouvernement du Royaume-Uni est 
dictee par des considerations econorniques et poli
tiques precises. 11 est d'ailleurs impossible de 
prendre au serieux la declaration du representant 
du Royaume-Uni. En e:l'fet, il a admis qu'il etait 
mal renseigne sur la question de la mobilite de la 
main-d'ceuvre en Union sovietique, ce qui ne l'a 
point empeche en meme temps de se pretendre 
expert en matiere de main-d'ceuvre. C'est violer 
les regles elementaires de la discussion que d'aborder 
un sujet sans etr.e bien informe. 

II est clair que le Gouvernement du Royaume-Uni 
n'est nullement satisfait de la situation economique 
actuelle de ce pays, et qu'il aimerait en rejeter la 
responsabilite sur un autre pays. Toutefois, il lui 
est impossible de rejeter cette responsabilite sur 
l'Union sovietique ; car les propositions de reduc-



country, for the proposals for· the reduction of 
almaments put forward by his country had been 
rejected by, among others, the United Kingdom. 

Putting aside the question of such proposals, he 
would point out that the World Federation of 
Trade Unions had submitted a definite proposal 
that expenditure on armaments be reduced. It 
was undeniable that such expenditure was a burden 
on the working classes, and that, were it diverted 
to peaceful ends, it could be used· to promote the 
welfare of the workers, to develop industry devoted 
solely to peaceful aims, and to absorb the labour 
released from the manufacture of armaments. The 
proposal was intended solely to improve the lot of 
the workers of the world. 

The United Kingdom representative had said 
that if armies were reduced ·there would be an 
increase of unemployment. He welcomed that 
revelation of the United Kingdom's real reason 
for keeping up a large army, which was an explicit 
admission that it could not keep down unemploy
ment without maintaining armed forces, and could 
not use the army for productive purposes. Indeed, 
the United Kingdom representative's dismissal of 
the Federation's proposal was typical of an aggres
sive country arming against peace. If, in fact, 
there was any deep-rooted desire for the reduction 
of armaments, why did the United Kingdom not 
vote for the Federation's proposal ? 

The attempt of the United Kingdom represen
tative to show that all was well in his country 
and that unemployment was decreasing there had 
been characterized by a tendentious comparison of 
figur.es of unemployment in the same year. If he 

·had, as he should have done, compared the figures 
for one year with the corresponding figures for the 
preceding year, the result would have be~n very 
different; in April 1948 in the United Kingdom, 
for example, the figure for unemployment had 
been 327,000, whereas the figure for April 1949 had 
been 355,000. Thus, in a country receiving Marshall 
Aid, unemployment had increased by nearly 9 %. 
No doubt a difference of 28,ooo was of no conse
quence to the United Kingdom representative, who 
probably did not regard unemployment as a prob
lem until the figures ran into millions; but it 
represented human lives. He had chosen figures 
for the United Kingdom, but the observations he 
had made applied to other countries, and in parti
cular to Austria, where the figures were much 
higher. The World Federation of Trade Unions 
would not occupy the lofty and respected position 
it did had it not drawn attention to such vital 
problems affecting the interests of the working 
classes. 

· The resolution of the Federation was not poli
tical propaganda, but a practical proposal designed 
to further the interests of the working classes of the 
world. It had, however, been used as a vehicle by 
the United Kingdom for scurrilous political propa
ganda, and the United Kingdom representative, 
while exercising his right to speak at length on the 
proposal, had not then had the decency to vote 
against the Indian proposal for limitation of 
speeches in order to permit him (the Soviet Union 
representative) to reply at equal length: He must 
nevertheless affirm that the resolution was entirely 

tion des armements formulees par !'Union sovitV 
tique ont ete rejetees par le Gouvernement du 
Royaume-Uni entre autres·. · 

Laissant de cote la question de ces propositions, 
l'orateur fait remarquer que la Federation syndicale 
mondiale a presente une proposition precise tendant 
a reduire les depenses d'armement. 11 est indeniable 
que ces depenses constituent une charge pour la 
classe ouvriere, et que, si elles etaient affectees a 
des fins pacifiques, elles pourraient servir a amelio
rer le bien-etre des travailleurs, a developper les 
industries qui travaillent a des fins exclusivement 
pacifiques, et a employer la main-d'reuvre liberee 
par les fabriques d'armeinent. Cette proposition 
vise uniquement a ameliorer le sort des travailleurs 
du monde. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni a deelare que, 
si les armees etaient reduites, le chomage augmen
terait. L'orateur est heureux que la veritable 
raison pour laquelle le Royaume-Uni entretient 
une armee importante ait ete mise en lumiere ; 
ainsi done, le Royaume-Uni reconnait expressement 
qu'il ne pourrait emplkher une aggravation du 
i::homage sans maintenir des forces armees, et qu'il 
lui serait impossible d'utiliser les effectifs de l'armee 
a des fins productives. La fac;.on dont le represen
tant du Royaume-Uni a rejete la proposition de la 
Federation est caracteristique de !'attitude agres
sive d'un pays qui arme contre la paix. Si, en fait, le 
Royaume-Uni desire sincerement la reduction des 
armements, pourquoi done ne vote-t-il pas pour la 
proposition de la Federation ? 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni s'est livre a 
une comparaison tendandeuse des chiffres du 
chomage au cours de la meme annee pour essayer 
de prouver que tout va bien dans son pays et que 
le chOmage y diminue. S'il i:tvait compare, ainsi 
qu'il aurait du le faire, les chiffres d'une annee aux 
chiffres correspondants de l'annee precedente, le 
resultat aurait ete tres different : en avril 1948, il 
y avait au Roya'ume-Uni 327.000 chomeurs, alors 
qu'en avril 1949 il y en avait 355.000. Ainsi, dans 
un pays qui beneficie du Plan Marshall, le chOmage 
a augmente de pres de 9 %. Sans aucun ·doute, une 
difference de 28.ooo est-elle sans importance pour 
le representant du Royaume-Uni, qui ne considere 
probablement pas le ch&mage comme un probleme 
tant que les chiffresn'atteignent pas des millions; 
mais ces chiffres representent des vies humaines; 
L' orateur a choisi des chiffres relatifs au Royaume
Uni, mais les observations qu'il a presentees s'appli
quent egalement a d'autres pays, en particulier a 
l'Autriche, ou le pourcentage de chOmeurs est 
beaucoup plus eleve. La Federation syndicale 
mondiale ne serait pas aussi respectee et n'occu~ 
perait pas une situation aussi eminente si elle 
n'avait pas attire !'attention sur ces problemes 
vitaux, qui affectent les i:D.terets des classes labo
rieuses. 

La resolution de la Federation n'est pas un acte 
de propagande politique, mais une proposition 
pratique inspiree par le souci de !'interet des 
classes laborieuses du monde. Le representant du 
Royaume-Uni y a cependant trouve pretexte a 
une propagande politique injurieuse, et, apres avoir 
exerce son droit de parler longuement sur cette 
proposition, n'a pas eu !'elegance de voter contre 
la proposition du delegue de l'Inde, visant a limiter 
les interventions, afin de 'permettre au representant 
de l'Union sovietique de repondre aussi longuement; 
L'orateur tient neanmoins a affirmer que Ia resolu~, 

769 

49 



constructive and in full harmony with the other 
practical proposals submitted by the Federation to 
the Council - namely, equal pay for equal work 
for men and women, which had also been objected 
to by the United Kingdom, and the safeguarding 
of trade union rights. 

The meeting rose at II p.m. 

tion est entierement constructive et en pleine 
harmonie avec les autres propositions pratiques 
que la Federation a presentees au Conseil, dont 
l'une, egalement combattue par la delegation du 
Royaume-Uni, demandait, a travail egal, un salaire 
egal pour l'hcimme et pour la femme, et l'autre sur 
la protection des droits syndicaux. 

La seance est levee a 23 heures. 

770 

------------------------------------------------------------------.....-n ______________ .u __ a-______ _ 




